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CHAIR HOKAMA:
(gavel)... The Council’s Committee on Budget and Finance shall come
to order. This morning, we have with us for Committee are members, Mr. White, our
Vice-Chairman, and our Committee members, Ms. Crivello.
.

.

.

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Aloha.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning. Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aloha and good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. The Chair excuses Ms. Baisa, Ms. Cochran, Mr. Couch, and
Mr. Guzman. So first, I know, there’s a lot of things happening today, so for those
that participating with the West Maui Lahaina Seniors, best wishes and safe event.
For the rest of us we know it is part of Aloha Week Festivities week. So, in honor this
Saturday, is Lanai’s turn. And we hope that we have a great event that’s planned for
our island. Okay, we have a agenda of four items of serious nature. And so, we will
start with testimony. Okay, I’ve, Staff has indicated that no one has requested to
provide testimony in the Chambers. We shall go to our District Offices and ask,
Ms. Lono, anyone in Hana wishing to provide testimony?
MS. LONO: Good morning, Chair. This is Dawn Lono at the Hana Office and there is no one
waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. W&ll go to Lanai, Ms. Fernandez?
MS. FERNANDEZ: Good morning, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez on Lanai and there is no
one waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. And then we’ll go to Molokai, Ms. Alcon?
MS. ALCON: Good morning, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokal and there is no one here
waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you so much, ladies. Anyone else wishing to provide testimony in
the Chambers? Seeing none, Members, testimony for today’s meeting shall be closed
with no objections.
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COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. So ordered. Let us also turn off our personal devices to silent
or off mode, please. Thank you. Thank you, ladies.

ITEM 62:

ADVERTISING

INSIDE

COUNTY

TRANSIT

BUSES

(CC 09-338, CC 15-20 1, BF CR 10-16)
CHAIR HOKAMA: May I direct you to Budget and Finance 62, our first item. This is
regarding under the heading of Advertising Inside of County Transit Buses. And we
have a communication from our Transportation Director with a proposed bill entitled A
Bill for an Ordinance Amending Title 11, Maui County Code, Relating to Advertising
Inside County Transit Buses. And the purpose of this bill is to offer advertising inside
County transit buses to tax-exempt organizations on a space-available basis and to
authorize the Department of Transportation to contract for advertising with private
vendors. So, this morning, we’ll ask the Department for their comments and we’ll ask
our Director, Ms. Johnson Winer, for her thoughts.
MS. WINER: Aloha, Committee members and Chair. I really appreciate the opportunity to
discuss this bill.
I know, we’ve talked about generating revenues and this was
principally why we brought the issue forward. The other thing that will need to be
done if this bill should pass from Committee is there is a section currently, and we
have already spoken with the Budget Chair and Administration, and they’re prepared
to also amend the section of the rates and fees because, I think, we currently have a
rack card rate listed in the rates and fees for any advertising. And just to explain why
this is coming actually forward rather than our Department doing advertising, which
we really don’t have anyone currently that has that kind of marketing capability.
Right now, it is actually costing our Department because we have to pay overtime to
one of our employees to go out and change the nonprofit cards in the buses. We
actually are not generating any revenue. It’s probably costing the County money to do
the nonprofit advertising. So, in an effort to move things forward in a way that is
similar to what other jurisdictions have done and, more specifically, City and County
of Honolulu. They have had a great deal of success. I think, the last check that I
made they generated and, you know, it may be a little bit higher since the last time I
checked, but, I think, with their buses they generated $184,000 in annual revenue.
And they have one company that they went out to bid for that they procured their
services. And so that company does the marketing. They do all of the changing of the
cards. They do whatever they can to get national corporation sponsorship and, I
think, it has really worked well to help subsidize the bus transportation. They have a
total, I think, it’s 540 buses in that range and we would be looking at 33 buses. So,
we would be looking for some type of similar arrangement though for capability of
generating revenue for the County to help subsidize our bus transportation. So, with
that authority it would change at least the way we’re actually advertising. You know,
currently we’re only doing the nonprofit portion, which really doesn’t generate any
revenue. So, we really appreciate your consideration and we’re here to try to answer
any questions that you might have. Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you so much. Does the Deputy have any comments he’d like
to share?
MR. TAKAMORI: Hi, good morning, Chair and Committee members.
anything to add to Director’s comments. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Okay.
Thank you, Mr. Takamori.
Department people at this time?

I actually don’t have

Mr. White, any questions for

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Is the $180,000 gross revenues or net revenues?
MS. WINER: That is the actual check that the vendor sends to the City and County.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, so, that’s the net?
MS. WINER: So, that’s the net. Right.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, so, based on that calculation, it’s probably unlikely that we
would be able to cover our costs because at $330 a bus, we would end up with maybe
$10,000 and $11,000.
MS. WINER: Probably the first year. But, of course, we don’t know because we haven’t gone
out to bid yet. Our costs on the cards may be structured differently than the City and
County has theirs set up. I believe, they get 33 percent of the overall ad revenues
generated. I think that’s the way theirs is structured, but then they have a minimum
cost also attached. So, we could set a minimum, you know, and we would look at
what potential we would have for generating in terms of revenue. And we would say
they have to generate a minimum per month in terms of whatever they compensate
the County for. So, it’s up to them how effectively they market if they have to pay that
minimum. So, we would be looking at their contract, how it’s currently set up. We’ve
been approached by a few vendors. Some of them also are looking at video displays,
which currently City and County does not have, which could generate additional
revenues provided we have the electrical capacity so it doesn’t, you know, drain any
of.. .and have very limited, I guess, service on the bus. So, we don’t wanna overload
that, but that was one of the options from one of the vendors that contacted us. So,
do video advertising in addition to the rack cards.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Did that vendor provide you any idea of what increase there would be
and the amounts that they could charge?
MS. WINER: I think that because what they’re doing is they’re providing the equipment and
all of the other things, and it would probably depend on how many times that was
displayed, they really didn’t have until we actually put out a request for their proposal.
I would think, personally myself, that if it’s more attractive, if it’s going to generate a
little bit more revenue, I would think they would have, you know, maybe the capability
to generate at least an additional 15 to 20 percent with that kind of advertising.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And did they provide any examples of where it’s been put into place in
other municipalities?
MS. WINER: Actually even though it’s, you know, currently installed in some of the vehicles,
like if you notice over on Lanai, they have these little video display units. What we’d
probably be looking at is something not as, you know, complicated as that. Maybe
only a couple areas where you could actually view a video or even a scrolling message,
that’s a possibility too. But they did not indicate, you know, exactly, I know, that Las
Vegas is one of the big areas because I’ve actually seen these. I don’t know if this
specific vendor has that as their market, but, I know, they’re trying to break into the
Hawaii market. It’s largely done in tour buses, you know, to do messaging, timeshare
sales, you know, a lot of the companies use that venue also.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you for that explanation. The one thing that caught
my ear was the fact that you’re actually paying overtime for an employee to go in and
change these messages for the nonprofits for which I understand they don’t pay
anything. You know, Mr. Chair, I think, that’s one of those things that if we’re going
to be helping we can’t be also incurring more costs. So, maybe something needs to be
figured out. Maybe a part-timer or something, somebody limited hire, I don’t know,
Mr. Chair. But something that can be utilized, that person be utilized, and a nominal
fee would be charged to the various vendors. I don’t know, $10. Five dollars a month,
I don’t know what it might be. But, to me, if we’re gonna keep incurring costs, and I
wanna help the nonprofits, yes, Mr. Chair, but now this is an added expense on top of
what all the other services and monies we provide for them. I’m kinda like, whoa,
maybe this is not such a great idea. But, again, I don’t know, Ms. Winer, maybe you
have something you would like to add to that.
MS. WINER: Yes, and we did look at that aspect and we did discuss it. Ad Walls is the
company that actually does the City and County’s advertising. And they agreed that
they would also change out all the nonprofit signs as well. So, we would not be
incurring that. They would do that just as an incentive, I guess, to get whatever the
bid is. But whatever we go out in a procurement
--

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MS. WINER: --it’s gonna be a little bit different than City and County’s because, you know,
we’re a totally different type of market. And so, for us, I would be putting in that
whoever the vendor is would include that in their particular proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, thank you, and, Chair, if we can get somebody to do it
for us and not incur cost. I’d be all for that. But, I just think by incurring costs,
especially overtime costs, for some employee to run around changing those signs in
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the bus seems kind of something I would not really agree to. You know, I think, we do
a lot for our nonprofits. This seems to be just another, like you say, Mr. Hokama, just
another gift to them. And, you know, maybe there is a limit to the gifting, you know, I,
you know, I’ve always been a supporter, but maybe I’m not so sure on this last one.
But if we can get a vendor to do it inclusive with their contract then I’d say no
problem. I’d be all for it. Thank you.
MS. WINER: And thank you. And just so you know the individual that goes out has to go
out at 1 1 o’clock at night when all the buses are in. So, it’s not something.. .we change
them out about once a month. So, it’s not like a huge expense, but then, you know,
he has a family too. So, it’s very difficult and he has to change it on all the buses.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we understand.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that. Mr. Carroll, questions, sir? Thank you. Ms. Crivello?
Members, on this one, the Chair wasn’t ready to pass this out. One, you know, I hear
your comments, Mr. Victorino. The Chair is looking for revenues. Okay, so, if we are
gonna provide free then I need a dollar value because, to me, that’s a grant to that
nonprofit.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so, I’m not willing to... if anything I’m willing to limit by percentage,
the amount nonprofits can use for advertising in our facilities. This is the County’s
facilities, not the nonprofit’s. Okay, so, we are gonna incur costs and, to me, part of it,
again, you know, I view, look at nonprofits very differently from many other people.
And, for me, unless they can show a relationship to the program, I’d prefer that we
don’t consider them because I’m looking for revs to whittle the costs down. So, to me,
we’re gonna make a policy decision, and regarding rates and fees, I’ll consider that
after I see how we wanna approach the contracting ‘cause if we do it by contracting
then people will have a chance to give proposals to the County, and we’ll take the best
proposal. So, in the end I don’t foresee issues with this 11 o’clock thing ‘cause
somebody who is gonna, wants to use our facilities to their benefit is gonna pay us for
it. I’m tired of eating it. So, I’m gonna find ways for somebody else to pay for it.
Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. And I’m assuming that when we contract this out
to a vendor that would provide paid advertising and do all the change outs that the
spots would be available to nonprofits only if they are not used for paid advertising.
And maybe the Department can clarify that. ‘Cause I agree with you, this is a revenue
generator and...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, and, Mr. White, the Chair has also been notified yesterday, and had
a slight, short discussion with our Staff, there is a recent Supreme Court ruling
regarding selections and, I guess, what was the term, please, Mr. Molina, that we
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should be aware of, or phrase? So, we are gonna ask the Department, you know, we
are gonna have consultations with the Director and the Department of how this
potential ruling may impact the legislation. So, you know.
MR. MOLINA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Molina?
MR. MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. It was along the lines of what exactly the County can
exclude from the advertising space that has been affected by this ruling.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Well to me, there’s a very bright line drawn between paid and unpaid
advertising. I don’t think that has anything to do with discrimination. If you’re
wanting something for free, you stand in line behind those that are getting the
opportunity to put it in only if they’re paid. So, if we were allowing, you know,
discrimination between nonprofit versus for-profit all on the same playing field then, I
think, we would be, you know, going in the wrong direction. But I can’t imagine
there’s any problem having people that are getting something for free standing behind
those that are paying.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
Just to add on just for clarification.
If I’m hearing
Mr. Molina right that’s nothing to do with nonprofits, for-profit. It’s who we can allow
and we cannot allow to do advertising. Is that what you’re saying, Mr. Molina?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Molina?
MR. MOLINA:
into

That’s related, but, you know, Staff would request more time to really dig

--

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, yeah.
MR. MOUNA: --the fmdings of the Courts and see how it applies to this Code section.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, ‘cause what I heard what you.. .what I heard you say,
you know, is that we may not be able to bar certain types of advertising if they want to
advertise. And maybe we need to check more into it, but, I think, that’s important to
understand too. I don’t think it’s so much profit, nonprofit. I think, it’s who we allow
to advertise and we’ve had a pretty stringent corridor in that respect, if I’m correct
Department, right? I’m sorry.
MR. TAKAMORI: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Takamori?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, other questions, Members?
want to ask? Ms. Crivello?

Mr. Carroll, anything else you might

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, nothing.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, we know the Director has communicated well her thoughts of how
she would like to see us move this legislation forward. I’m gonna work with her and
our Staff to see if we need to make any additional adjustments particularly with this
thing, and we’re gonna consult with Corporation Counsel ‘cause I would not like to
retinker with this once we get it out for the Council’s consideration. So, Director, that
is my intention. Any concerns?
MS. WINER: No, that’s fine and, you know, because that was the area that your Staff had
alerted us to. It was something that we were unaware of so that was not even an area
that we were going to change. You know, so, if there is some type of new legislation
that requires permitting certain types of advertising to be shown or not discriminated
against, I can understand that. So, I agree with you and I’ll be happy to work with you
and also our Budget Director too to make sure that whatever the phrasing is in our
budget section that deals with rates and fees that is consistent.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you so much.
defer Item 62?

Okay, Members, with no objections, we shall

COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Item is deferred.
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Director and Deputy.
MS. WINER: You’re welcome.
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ITEM 53f6):

CONTRACTS AND GRANTS: JULY 2015 (WINDWARD
AVIATION INC., C5347-2) (MISC)

CHAIR HOKAMA: May I direct you please now, Members, to Budget Item 53(6). This is
under our heading of Contracts and Grants. Part of our finance responsibility is to
review such items. This is regarding Windward Aviation, Inc., Contract C5347-2. And
we are in receipt of the contract. And we’ll ask the Chief to come join us please
regarding this item. So, if you can join us, please. Okay, Chief, thank you very much
for joining us this morning on this specific contract item. Part of the reasons we’ve
asked you to help join us this morning is we’ve noticed the continued increases of
costs in this area. And we would ask for your comments on, regarding the increases.
And we also have, part of the contract is to extend it to June 30, 2016. So, we are
asking if you could speak specifically on this item for us this morning, please.
MR. MURRAY: All right, thank you, Chair. Good morning, Members. Thank you for the
opportunity to address this contract. We are asking for the contract to be carried on
to provide our services that we do to our County for the use of our helicopter.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Chief, you have any ability to share usage, costs, and, you know, ‘cause
this, I believe, started when we first, if I remember right, the first time we started was
at what 400,000 was the County’s share and the State was 400?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Something like that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I think when we first started.

.

.

(inaudible)...

MR. MURRAY: No, that would be for the MedEvac.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: MedEvac?
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, that’s the other contract.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Chief, so explain to us this is specifically for what regarding?
MR. MURRAY: This is regarding our rescue helicopter. And we also use it for firefighting as
well.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, well we know you’ve been busy this fiscal year so far, Chief. So, we
understand the need of equipment. Is this.. .you see this cost going up accordingly
every year in this manner?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, it’s, you know, there’s maintenance. There’s also unforeseen issues with
this contract as far as, you know, them being able to operate properly. But, I think,
this is the best system that I have seen thus far in the State of Hawaii.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Do you know what your sister counties are putting out as far as county
dollars for this kind of service?
MR. MURRAY: It’s all...
CHAIR HOKAMA: We know you get three islands, Chief, so you have a unique situation from
every other county and we understand that. We just was wondering how we compare
with your sister departments in the State.
MR. MURRAY: All the other counties, Kauai, Oahu, and Big Island, they all own their own
helicopters.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: This contract, I think.. .see along with those contracts, they own their
helicopters, they still have to do maintenance contracts because none of the
departments have maintenance, helicopter maintenance within their departments. So,
those things need to be contract as well along with pilots. In some jurisdictions, they
have their own pilots that they train. But most of the other counties have to hire out
for that process as well. So, if you look at all of the issues and the positives of this
contract and the costs annually, I believe, this is the most efficient within the State of
Hawaii.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Staff, do we have some kind of analysis that we received that
justifies the, and supports the Chiefs comments?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: While he’s looking that up I can provide you the last four years’ worth of expenses
for the helicopter.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, I’m trying to get a grip as far as how it stands with other counties.
MR. BAZ: Oh, okay. Yeah...
CHAIR HOKAMA: And, again, we understand, you know, the Chief may have double the calls
that another county had and the need of helicopter may have been doubled or the
chopper had to go to Molokai or Lanai instead of maybe just from Waimea, Big Island,
to Kona, Big Island. So, I’m trying to understand it ‘cause, again, you know, for me,
the increases is very noticeable, and I’m just trying to have a good understanding
where and why this increases are. And if this is just a onetime thing and we can look
at a smaller request. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. So, the actual expenditures from Fiscal Year ‘12 were
743,000. Fiscal Year ‘13 was about 725. Fiscal Year ‘14 was 815 and Fiscal Year ‘15
-
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was 784. That’s the unaudited numbers. I don’t know if there’s any other recent, you
know, invoices that were gonna be paid later. But, so, yeah, it did increase the last
couple of years, ‘14 and ‘15, over the ‘12 and ‘13 numbers. The budget for it includes
some level of, you know, just in case there’s more emergencies in one year than
another. But that’s why, yeah, so you’re seeing, you know, it’s not increasing by
25 percent. It’s increasing by about maybe 10 percent.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This would be the last amendment of this contract period as you folks
understand it? ‘Cause this amendment is to now take...
MR. MURRAY: Yes, that would be the ending of that four-year option.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we appreciate that confirmation, Chief. Mr. White, questions?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Yeah, I tend to agree with the Chief because if you,
you know, if you look at various fire situations that we’ve encountered, my
understanding is that in addition to the base, we have access to multiple birds, right?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, sir.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE:
So, we, you know, we’re not in a situation where we have one
helicopter and that’s all we’ve got. Or, two helicopters and that’s all we’ve got. We’ve
actually got the ability to.. .I’ve seen like three in the air.
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And I don’t know, how many are available?
MR. MURRAY: They have four.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: And a lot of times they might be doing some industrial work on another
island with one of ‘em.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So, you know, having access to multiple helicopters, in my view, is,
you know, if we had to pay to outfit, maintain, and put pilots in four different
helicopters, or have access to that over an annual period, we’d be looking at a big
chunk of money. So, I don’t recall what the base amount is and what the per-hour
charges are, but, I think, you know, if the Chief has it at some point, if he could
provide us with what that, you know, with what the actual costs are based on our
caliouts. I think, we would see that it’s a pretty good use of funds.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we’ll forward that request to the Chief, Jordan, please, Mr. Molina.
And are you clear on Mr. White’s request?
MR. MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yeah, so the request is to get a comparison with the
other counties as far as the total cost and the per callout cost to have helicopter
service?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I think it would be good to see what the cost per helicopter might
be in the other counties. And then compare that to what we’ve got. Because, I think,
we’re gonna come out well ahead as far as the ability to respond effectively because as
you know, a lot of the fires that we have are in inaccessible areas. And I’d hate to
switch to having one helicopter or two helicopters that we own versus having access to
four.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, I’m in no way advocating we go and purchase helicopters. I’m just
trying to understand the increases as it goes forward, Mr. White, so that when we get
to budget, you know, in this subject area we understand how the Chief has
approached it and
--

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --it’ll be an easier review for us. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And thank you, Mr. White, for starting the
conversation in that respect. I still would be interested to see what the cost factors are
versus the other counties. And you are correct, Mr. Chair, we are unique because we
have three islands within our County. And, I guess, if there was an emergency on
Kahoolawe we would respond because that is still part of our County.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. The Chief still just jurisdictional, yes, authority.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, when you was talking about four distinct islands on top
of the fact that we have some of the most remote areas, not to say that Big Island, and
Kauai, and other counties, don’t have remote areas. And I understand that lately
we’ve had a number of incidents for which visitors, and sometimes even locals, do not
heed warnings and go out and endeavor and get themselves into trouble. If you’ve
watched that video of East Maui and that flash flood, it really brings home how
dangerous water can be in a very, very short time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, I can understand the challenges that are faced. And I
agree with Mr. White. I like the idea that we have the ability right now to call upon
two, three, maybe even possibly four helicopters for a major emergency. You know, if
one goes off to Molokai, or one goes off to Lanai, that helicopter is not going to turn
around come right back and help us here. So, we definitely need that. Chief, one of
the questions I have for you. You have specially trained members of your Fire
-
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Department that go with these helicopters for rescue as well as extractions and all of
that. Am I correct?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, you are.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, so specially trained personnel.
Not pilots, but
specially trained personnel who will go with these pilots to whatever the situation may
be called upon, whether it’s to extract somebody from, you know, a situation where
they’re caught in floodwaters, and they’re trapped, or somebody’s gotten hurt and
needs to be brought out that way, you know. So, your personnel are trained for that
purpose and that purpose only?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, so, they’re not pilots. They don’t have the ability to
fly these helicopters. Do the other counties have actual fire personnel that do fly
these, fly helicopters?
MR. MURRAY: From my understanding, Honolulu is the only one that has employees

--

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That are...
MR. MURRAY: --from the Fire Department that actually fly.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That actually fly?
MR. MURRAY: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
But I understand Honolulu recently, two of their fire
helicopters were down simultaneously, and that
--

MR. MURRAY: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
--became a real challenge because then they were
depending on the police helicopter and private helicopters to come in and help them,
right?
MR. MURRAY: Right and, you know, I believe, one of the police helicopters was down at the
same time too. So, you know, thank you for that question because the maintenance
--

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, thank you.
MR. MURRAY: --and having that availability is your utmost priority. So, those are examples
of situations that don’t really work out. And one of the other things that we need to
talk about is the actual operating permitting process of what actually needs to get
done by the contractor, which is a lot of work and a lot of money that also goes into
the contract. So, thank you.
-
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, and, I know, the owner of Windward Aviation, been
friends with him for many, many years, very dependable and as well as a reliable pilot.
He’s also been a very staunch community member. $o, it’s something that I feel very
comfortable with this whole situation. Yeah, good to compare, Mr. Chair, I agree. But
I like the aspect that we have the freedom when necessary to call upon this Windward
Aviation and get two or three helicopters up in the air. And, again, I don’t, you and I
both know, Mr. Chair, and I’ll close with this. Emergencies do not happen from 9:00
to 5:00. It always happens at the most awkward times, at the most difficult point of
the day, and then you are putting our people out there. And I’d like to know that
whoever is taking them into these remote areas to help with emergencies and rescues
that they have provided the best equipment to protect our personnel as well as
bringing out whomever, whether it’s a visitor or a resident, bringing them back safely
should that, you know, rescue been desired and completed. So, thank you, Chair. I
appreciate the conversation.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Ms. Crivello?

Thank you.

Mr. Carroll, any questions regarding this subject?

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: None.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Chief, just give us, for our understanding, you call out your chopper, you
do an extraction, if it needs MedEvac, then that chopper needs to meet with then our
MedEvac aircraft and do the transfer, and then the patient is flown to the appropriate
medical facility?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, Chair, that’s how it’s conducted. Our helicopter can get into limited
space areas whereas the MedEvac helicopter cannot and they have areas that they can
land safely. And then what, we’ll do exactly what you said is we’ll do that drop off.
Well do the packaging, get everything all set, and then they’ll be flown to the nearest
hospital.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And then in the chain of control regarding a patient, your people then
hand it off to the EMS personnel?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The transfer point, Chief?
MR. MURRAY: Yes. AMR provides the flight crew. So, once we hand that over they’re the
higher trained personnel so it’s a handoff to them.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well thank you for that, Chief, because part of this is to let our
people know how we really operate. And, the Chief made it clear what the Department
is responsible, when it’s handed off to the next appropriate medical personnel, which
is EMS, and then eventually the physicians at the receiving facility. So, we appreciate
that.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Real quickly. And it’s not only for the air ambulance, in
many cases, especially if it’s local and they can be transported to our local hospital,
you meet the person, an EMS is at a certain location for which that person is dropped
off, put in an ambulance, and then rushed to the hospital for whatever it may be?
MR. MURRAY: Absolutely. The ambulance is usually for the nearby situations and the air
MedEvac is for areas of long distance usually.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Okay. So, I just wanted that to be clear that it’s not
always airvac [sic], but it is
--

MR. MURRAY: No, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --sometimes, in many cases, it is the ambulance service
that waits for that patient to be dropped off at a certain location and then brings ‘em
in to the hospital or...
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, it’s a high percentage actually to the ambulance.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. MURRAY: More so than the air MedEvac.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you, Chair. Thank you, Chief.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. No, we appreciate the Chiefs responses to the Committee’s
questions and I believe we all have a clearer understanding of how the Department
performs with helicopter service that the community pays for the Department’s ability
to perform. Are there any other questions? Mister... Chief, please?
MR. MURRAY: Sorry, just a matter of clarification on what we wanted to bring up was the
option for fourth year goes to June 2017. I think, we made a mistake and said
June 2016.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Okay, I’m looking at the last amendment
Members, that’s in your binder. At the right bottom corner,
and someone signed off. $o, Mr. Baz, is this an accurate
know, we just trying to understand the contract ‘cause this
executed. Is it ‘17, or ‘16, as it states? Mr. Ueoka.

to contract certification,
you see the date 7/7/15,
document? I mean, you
according to us has been

MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. I’m just looking at the contract document. The time of
performance was amended performance through June 30, 2015.
The second
-
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additional term was through June 30, 2016. And there’s still, I believe, one last term
from ‘16 to ‘17. That would be the fourth term.
MR. BAZ: So, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: So, the amendment that you’re looking at was to add that additional term through
June 30, 2016. There will be another amendment to add the optional, the fourth
term, from July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017. Yeah, so, that’s why the amendment you’re
looking at is you’re correct in reading it and this amendment is only effective until
June 30 of 2016, ‘cause that’s, but there’s another option to extend the contract for
one more year.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, and that request will come through the upcoming budget for the
funding, Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Yes, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, and I’m not trying to.. .but when I read below
here amendment to, you know, dated 2018, from July 18, 2014, it says running up to
2015. So, then you’re saying 2 additional 12 months from the June 30, 2015, is that
what that is referring to? Just to make sure that I’m on the right page.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
much.

Okay, I just wanted to make sure.

Okay, thank you very

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so, the original contract went through June 30, ‘14, according to
their chart with three additional extensions that the County may exercise, which is the
option, right? Amendment 1 was to take it to June 2015. Amendment 2, that’s before
us, this contract is till June 2016. And, I believe, they have one more amendment that
they’re allowed by contract to extend and that is what the Chief has just mentioned
about. So, since we are going to receive information on this and as well as some
maybe potential update on regarding the third extension, with no objections, we shall
defer this item.
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, this item is deferred.
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Chief, thank you for your assistance in bringing us a better understanding
of your operations regarding helicopter service.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you for the opportunity.

ITEM 54:

DISTRIBUTION OF COUNTYWIDE ADMINISTRATIVE
AND SUPPORT COSTS TO COUNTY DEPARTMENTS
(CC 15-89)

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, let’s move on. You know, we’re all aware of Members’ needs this
Thursday.
So, may I direct you please now to Item 54. This is regarding the
Distribution of Countywide Administrative and Support Costs to County Departments.
And this is from a Communication 15-89, from Director of Finance, Mr. Agsalog,
where he submitted or transmitted the Full Cost Allocation Plan, Fiscal Year
2011/2012 Actuals, County of Maui, and the 0MB A-87 Compliant Cost Allocation
Plan, Fiscal Year 2011/2012 Actuals, County of Maui. As we, you, we are informed,
this was done by a consultant called Matrix Consulting Group. And it provides in
their report what they believe is the appropriate distribution of administrative and
support costs to all County operating departments, divisions, and programs. 0MB
A-87 Compliant Cost Allocation Plan describes appropriate distribution of
administrative and support costs to all County operating departments, divisions, and
program relating to State and Federal grant reimbursements. So, this morning, we
have our Deputy, Mr. Walker, here to give us Finance Department’s comments
regarding this allocation of costs for us. Mr. Walker.
MR. WALKER:
Good morning, Mr. Chair, Committee members.
Mark Walker, Deputy
Director, Department of Finance. I guess, everybody has a copy of both of these plans
before you, and just a bit of history. Prior to engaging the Matrix Group, I think, in
the latter part of 2013, the County had not done an update to their 0MB or their full
cost allocation plans in approximately ten years or so. So, when we engaged these
consultants they came out here a number of times, met with all of the departments, in
depth, I believe, and came up with the reports you see before you. The results as you
might expect when the prior plans hadn’t been done for ten years were that costs had
gone up significantly. And I’m sure many departments were surprised and that’s
probably not the operative word, but maybe upset at what, you know, their new costs
for overhead were based on this plan. But, you know, these guys, this is what they do
for a living. You know, and, I think, I can understand why they’re upset because it’s,
suddenly that’s affecting their operations, the costs of their operations. And, I guess, I
would, what I would say to the Committee is we would be willing to go out and do
another plan, you know, this year or next year. We haven’t budgeted for that at this
point, but if that was the wish or want of the Committee that is certainly something
that we could do. Otherwise, I think, we’re here to.. .I’m here to help answer any
questions you may have along with the Budget Director. Thank you.
-17-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
September 17, 2015

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Baz, your thoughts, your comments, please.
MR. BAZ: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair and Members. Just step back a little bit and try to
understand what it is we’re looking at. The, a cost allocation plan is something that
is, help to define what the governmental costs are of the different units of government
that we have. And it’s a study that is done to identify costs of different costs centers
and then also some of the serving agencies so that we can try to truly match up what
the costs are of an operation, including, you know, the overhead things that we
consider like, not normal overhead things like you would consider like fringe benefits,
but things like our Corporation Counsel costs, things like administrative costs,
Council legislative costs. And those costs then are identified and presented in this
document here. There’s two different documents. One is a full cost allocation plan,
which is basically an identification of all of the true costs of operations throughout the
County. Then their second one is an 0MB A-87 compliant cost allocation. And that’s
a Federal specific one that is provided so that we can make sure that we’re charging
overhead to the Federal grants appropriately. And the basis of that 0MB, you know,
A-87 cost allocation plan will be negotiation with the Federal government on an
indirect cost rate. And that’s something that we’re working on so that we can make
sure that we’re covering our costs. There’s basically two different ways to recover
costs from Federal grants. One is the, a very detailed compilation of actual costs up to
certain restrictions that the grantor may have. Or, the second one is that we actually
negotiate an indirect cost rate with the federal government. And when I was at MEO,
we did the very detailed full item, you know, and actually the Federal government
wants to get away from that because the amount of work it takes to, you know, make
sure that everybody’s timesheets are appropriate and every single invoice is, you
know, an allowable cost and different things makes it very challenging to administer
and to verify. So, they actually want us to move towards an indirect cost rate. And
so, and that’s what the County is working on here, A lot of the Federal grants that we
apply for they expect us to have an indirect cost rate. And so, this is... and definitely
we’re required to have this 0MB A-87 compliant cost allocation plan if we’re going to
charge anything. So, that’s why the justification for these are that, you know, it’s
really.., one, is, of course, all of our Federal grants and making sure that we’re
charging the correct overhead. But the other is something that, you know, GFOA and
other organizations that do government financing, they’re actually, I get a lot of
training, you know, notifications saying, hey here’s a way to, you know, generate more
money for your General Fund. And while, you know, that’s the case what happens is
that, you know, because those general government costs have typically just been
absorbed by the General Fund the idea of us recouping the actual or some rated cost
from the special funds that are supported by the General Fund costs is something that
a lot of jurisdictions don’t do it. The County of Maui has been doing it for a very long
time and, you know, as the Deputy Director mentioned just happened to be that the
last time a cost allocation plan was done was 19.. .the late ‘90s. So, you know, the
Water Department was still by semiautonomous. The Department of Public Works
was still managing the Environmental Management aspects.
There’s some new
departments and different things like that. So, we wanna make sure that, you know,
we’re trying to do the best to accurately reflect what those costs are and then if,
appropriate charge those costs to the special funds so that we’re making sure that
-

18

-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
September 17, 2015

we’re budgeting appropriately for it and not overburdening the taxpayers to pay
support on, especially the ones that are fee-based special funds. So, basically that’s
the gist of why we’re doing it and, I agree with the Deputy Director that, you know,
this is the first time it was done in 12, 13 years. And, I think, that the understanding
of maybe some of the requirements and what’s involved in a cost allocation plan was,
could have been better. And so, if we do another one, you know, in a timely manner,
then everybody’s been through it one time. We can do it again and they’ll be more
aware of the questions that the consultants are asking and the responses to those
questions and how it relates to this end product.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We thank you for your comments.
much did you folks spend for this Matrix Report?

So, tell us approximately how

MR. WALKER: Off the top of my head, I think...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Round numbers.
MR. WALKER: Yeah, I think maybe $25,000, something like that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, okay. Yes, no, I think, your comments are very appreciative. I
would say yes, I think, we need to consider an update because I would like to verify
some of the findings that this Matrix report presented to us. But I would agree it has
been a helpful document ‘cause we have found out, and the Budget Director was good
in helping us, whereby the County found we were paying for certain employees’
benefits that were grant funded and should have been covered by the grant. So,
again, cost allocation is of concern to this Committee, and ‘cause we definitely have
other places to put those County dollars. So, saying that I’ll ask the Committee if they
have questions regarding this distribution of costs. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I’m trying to find some of the pages that I went through during budget,
but I’m not finding them very quickly. Chair, my challenge is that I understand where
we’re going with this. I understand the appropriateness, but the degree of change in a
very short period is pretty dramatic.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I agree.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And I’m not going to recall the numbers exactly, but my recollection is
that the entire increase in the water rates, the money that we generated by the water
rate increase last year was completely wiped out by the change in the cost allocation,
which, I believe, went up by about $4 million. So, we increased everybody’s water
rates and then took virtually that entire increase and put it back in the General Fund.
Now, I know, that that helps keep taxes down and we’re putting the costs where they
probably appropriately should be. But as they alluded to it has a pretty major impact
on the various departments that have been subject to these new allocations. And, I
believe, it’s, you know, 4 million something in the Water Department, 3 million
something in Wastewater, and another 2 or 3 in Solid Waste. And so, it’s a pretty
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bitter pill for some of the departments to swallow, but I can’t find the pages that I
was...
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, you shared your comments very thoroughly in the budget process,
Mr. White, so I understand what you’re saying now. And this is something, I think, we
definitely gonna work on prior to.. .I’m going to work on prior to budget and see how we
can address it so the impact isn’t so hard on the community as well as the
departments to operate. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, thank you. Member White, you know, yeah, those are very good
comments and it is, I, yeah, bitter pill, may be a correct term. You know, it’s
something that it didn’t come about all of a sudden. I mean, it did because we just did
this plan. But, you know, because we hadn’t done a plan in 13 or 14 years, that’s
really why you saw those dramatic cost increases. So, it wasn’t, and again, you know,
specifically for the Water Department, their being semiautonomous now being, you
know, a part of the organization, is a drastic change, you know. And so, something
should have probably happened at that point to look at their cost allocation and say
hey, you know, now that you’re a County department things might be different than as
being semiautonomous. If you look at Page 79 of the Full Cost Allocation Plan, this is
the allocation detail of Corporation.. .1 like to pick on my neighbor here. And so, for
the Water Department, the Department of Water Supply, you know, they’re allocated,
you know, $285,000 of costs for their legal services basically. There’s, you’ll see
there’s a first pass and a second pass. And, I think, I explained before, but the first
pass is the direct cost. The second passes are what, you know, their, Corp. Counsel’s
overhead would be. And so, that’s why you see this total number of $285,000. And,
you know, so if you think about that and what it probably was before was something
very small. I forget what the percentage was, like 3, 3’/2 percent was the overhead
charge for Water Supply, up until this report. And after this report, even though
Water Supply got the biggest number increase, their actual allocation is the least, their
percentage allocation of the cost, of the overhead cost is the least of any of the special
funds because they have their own Finance Section and different things like that. So,
if you look at it the, yeah, while the dollar amount is higher
--

VICE-CHAIR WHITE; Theirs is a lower percentage.
MR. BAZ: --their percentage, they’re the lowest percentage because they have a lot of their
own internal operations too.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: But are both of you satisfied having gone through the report that the
allocations are fair and appropriate?
MR. BAZ: I honestly had some questions. The consultant, the first draft that they presented
to us I did scrutinize it very, very significantly and scrutinize their methodologies a lot,
and it came to a point where, you know, because I don’t have the time to do
the... otherwise, I would do the cost allocation plan myself. But I don’t have the time
or expertise to do that. We had to trust the consultant’s expertise in certain areas.
But their methodologies are something that I was concerned with. They explained it to
-
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my satisfaction. But, again, it’s based on the information they get as well. So, if we do
another one here in short amount of time, I think, it would be a lot better understood
by the people providing the information to the consultants so that the end outcome
will be a better end outcome.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Crivello, questions? Mr. Carroll? Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. And, I think, Mr. White covered some of
my concerns. But, in essence, just so that the public understand, these were costs
that we were incurring, but there was not a direct figure put out so that we could
correlate that as overhead expenses? Is that correct?
MR. BAZ: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It’s not something new that just came out of nowhere. It’s
been occurring, but there has been no real tracking of it or categorizing it.
MR. BAZ: Yes, Mr. Chair

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: --and Member Victorino, that’s correct. All the numbers in here are based on the
CAFR from our 2012 Fiscal Year. And so, these are our actual numbers that we
already expended and it’s just an allocation of those actual costs. There’s no.. .it’s not
like we created new costs or increased budgets or anything because of the plan. It
was just that we’re now, you know, having a better way of allocating those costs that
we had already incurred.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And in essence you have a better way of tracking it also so
you know specifically what the cost factors for these various departments?
MR. BAZ: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And to close that, you know, even though the Water
Department had been semiautonomous, budgetary was still under the County of
Maui. It has never changed. And also that it was an enterprise fund, which was
supposed to be self-sustaining, all their expenses, including overhead. So, I kinda
disagree with that statement we had rate increase and it went for not because it was
all there. It just never was separated out through the years. And when we were
semiautonomous, Mr. Chair, all that the board did was approve the budgets and
approve CIPs, but it still when it came to money, it all had to come back to you folks
here in the Council. Am I correct, Mr. Chair, ‘cause you were sitting here?
CHAIR HOKAMA: We had to authorize the borrowing.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That’s right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That’s right. You know, so, you know, again, just so that
we clear on that particular issue, you know. But thank you, Mr. Baz, because, I
think, this is a good way of us beginning to realize the true overhead expense that we
incur for the various departments, whether it’s Water, or any special fund, or any of
the other departments. So, Mr. Mark, you want to say something ‘cause you look like
you’re chomping at the bits to say something. Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair, very
much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you. And that’s an important factor and, I know, Chair, when Chair White
was the Budget Chair, I had this discussion with him about, you know, we don’t
identify the, especially the fringe benefit costs for General fund funded departments.
Those costs are not, you know, discretely expressed to you guys because it’s all in the
fringe benefits in Countywide costs in the Department of Finance. And so, if you
actually wanted to look at what the true overhead costs are for those different
departments, you know, that’s what that Full Cost Allocation Plan. It includes all the
departments, not just the special funds. And so, if you wanted to see how much, you
know, theoretically the Mayor’s Office or Council Services or anything like that, those
are all included here. What the overhead costs are, which are still being, you know,
they’re General Fund funded so there’s no sense of making a transfer. But if you
wanted to identify what those overhead costs were those are shown in this type of
report. And, I know, you know, in some areas it would be nice identify those costs,
you know, within the budget itself but, you know, we made a point to make sure that
it’s consolidated so it all gets paid too. So, there’s pros and cons of that, but yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Walker?
MR. WALKER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I guess, I just want to add that, I mean, the goal again
is to adequately, for each department, adequately express what their true costs of
providing the service is so that they can price their service appropriately. Now, I
think, after we’ve done this first plan and if we did a second, I think, we could
probably arm-wrestle or negotiate with the consultant or the departments on how,
what the basis is for the allocation and how they arrived at it ‘cause if you look in the
report there, depending on the department, there were different ways that they
allocated the costs. It could have been on head count. It could be on square footage.
It could be on types of.. .the number of forms that were processed in a year. So, it just
depended on their operation and the consultant’s take on the best way to allocate
those costs based on their operating activity. So, as the Budget Director alluded to,
we learned a lot here. And, I think, if we were to do it again we’d already have a
foundation and the departments would be more aware of what the consultant was
getting at, not that they would hide information on costs and that kind of stuff,

-
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because a lot it is budget related, et cetera. But that potentially we could get maybe a
more accurate tally on what their true overhead costs are. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Yeah, the true overhead costs are reflected in the
Water Department and the Water, Wastewater, and Golf Fund. And...
MR. BAZ: Highways.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE:
don’t they?

So, those allocations include all of the ERS and OPEB attributions,

MR. BAZ: Yeah, so, in the operating budget ordinance we do have those costs identified. In
any of the, like Solid Waste, I just turned to, the Solid Waste Management Fund, right,
it’s a special fund. And so there is the actual contribution to the General Fund for the
ERS and, you know, Social Security, FICA, taxes, which are, you know, we have to pay
for. The EUTF is based, you know, and these are rates that are based on not this full
cost allocation, but the actual expenditures from the Department of Finance, right.
And then, there’s the OPEB overhead, of course, and then the debt service, different
things like that. But each one of those also has an administrative overhead charge.
That budget allocation of the administrative overhead charge is what we’re talking
about in the full cost allocation
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So, that does, those numbers are not in the cost allocation

--

MR. BAZ: No.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --as a direct charge?
MR. BAZ: So, yeah, so, they’re not paying double. Since they’re already paying those as
contribution, you know, to reimburse. In Department of Finance’s Countywide costs,
there’s an interfund reimbursement line that where it shows the negative amount of
the money coming in. You know, so, yeah, they’re not double cost. The admin
overhead is strictly from the Full Cost Allocation Plan, which is not including fringe
benefit costs. It’s the actual costs of the General Fund or the department’s providing
services.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right. Chair, I’d like to see us at least get an estimated cost of what
the fringe benefit costs are by department. And I know we can probably estimate that.
But, I think, it would be good for the public to know exactly what all the other
departments’ true costs are. And because the, you know, the fringe benefits make up
a significant amount of what it costs for us to run the Parks, for example. And, I
think, it’s important for everyone to see what we are actually spending to run Parks
and Planning and various other departments. The other thing that I recall during
budget was that when we were looking at our allocations compared to other counties.
We were looking at the County of Kauai and they basically don’t allocate any costs to
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their Water Department, but they do allocate a significant amount of revenue. I don’t
remember the charge, but they get, I think, the comparison is that Maui County Water
Department gets something like $240,000 or something for the fire hydrants. The
County pays the Water Department $240,000 for fire hydrants. And my recollection is
on the island of Kauai, it is 2.4 or $3.6 million that the county pays the Water
Department. So, you know, if we’re going to allocate charges then we should also
allocate revenues differently because to say that the maintenance of the fire hydrants
is costing Kauai 3.6 million and we’re getting two hundred and forty something
thousand doesn’t seem quite fair. So, if we’re gonna put the burden on the Water
Department then we should also provide them the appropriate revenue for the services
they’re providing to the County, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Appreciate your comment, Mr. White. I would say you make a very solid
point. But I would agree part of the Chair’s support to move the cost allocation
forward is specifically to show the community and tax base, what we are asking them
to pay for. I think, clarity of where we put their money and how it’s being used is
critical to increase confidence in what we do on a day-to-day basis. So, Mr. Baz, it is
your intent to, for the upcoming budget to duplicate last year’s approach regarding
allocation? Has that being determined?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, so, Mr. Chalr, for the Fiscal Year 2017 proposed budget, we will be utilizing
the same percentage of cost allocation as in the previous year. That’s correct, until
they do a new study. So, I’m not sure if he’s gonna be, the Deputy Director is gonna
be including in his budget request, a request for redoing the allocation plan. But I
assume so. Looking at him right now, I assume so, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, hearing your comment that means we not going to have a Director, if
the Deputy is going to do all the submittals?
MR. BAZ: Sorry, Mr. Chalr.
request.

No, the Director of Finance will submit to my office their

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Regarding the 0MB, Office of Management and Budget,
which is a Federal thing, any issues that popped up regarding the allocation of our
approach and from the funder’s standpoint? Has there been any concerns or are they
very happy with the information through this revisions?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, I haven’t received any negative feedback from the agencies regarding
that plan.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so no impact on reimbursements in any way?
MR. BAZ: Not that I know of.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Walker?

-
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MR. WALKER: Mr. Chair, I just, now with this 0MB plan obviously the departments have
something they can fall back on if they’re in negotiations with a Federal or State
agency. They have something that they can show them as opposed to pulling a
number out of thin air or a 12-year-old or 13-year-old number.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, they had no issue. Well I’m sure they had no issue since we were
picking up the benefits for some of those grant employees or was that a comment they
brought forward to you folks, Mr. Baz? Like why are you paying the benefits for this
grant employees?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, for the few grants that we do that do not pay their complete fringe
benefit or overhead costs, as the grantor, they’re not going to complain about it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, I understand.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, but we are in discussions on, like I mentioned, getting those costs covered
by those. Some of them have, you know, and this is something, I guess, we need to be
more aware of when receiving the grant, you know, if can’t charge overhead to those
grants then that has to be consideration of the Administration and the Council in
accepting that grant, you know, with the full knowledge that that grant is going to
require us to match a certain extent, right? So, if it’s not a 100 percent granted
funded where they’re covering all of the overhead and fringe benefits then, you know,
or if like the Federal ones for our transportation, you know, for our highways, we know
specifically that we have to put in 20 percent. So, it’s with that knowledge that you
accept that award.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MR. BAZ: So specifically like with Section 8, you know, they.. .we would have to if we
required them to make a, to cover all of their fringe benefit and overhead costs. That
we’d have to make some kind of determination of, you know, do we, you know, how
that would impact the program. Or with the understanding that we believe the
Section 8 Program is a good program and we wanna continue the program so we
understand that we’re gonna be, you know, matching that grant with a certain
amount as well.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, well I would approach it for the upcoming budget that the grant
takes care of 100 percent or make recommendations on adjustments, including
reduction of staff. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Baz brings up an interesting question. When
we are doing a highway project with the 80/20 sharing with Federal government, is
the 20 percent that we are putting in inclusive of just the costs for the road or are we
able to add overhead costs to that amount
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. BAZ?
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --and thereby increase our 20 percent?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chair and Member White. Yes, from my understanding
there are two factors. The engineering costs we can include in matching.
So,
sometimes when you see a request for $500,000 come in and it’s, you know, highway
funded initially those costs are included as part of those matching. So, if it’s design
costs, engineering costs, acquisition costs, and anything we do up to the point. And
then so, when it actually comes to paving the road the feds may actually pay for
100 percent of the actually paving of the road because we’ve already incurred our
20 percent match. And the other thing is is they actually, the Feds will actually
reimburse us for engineering, our engineers on the fourth floor. Some of their labor
costs as well get reimbursed by the Feds, the matching, if we’ve, you know, reached
that 20 percent already.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, my question though is you’ve got a cost allocation for Public
Works as well on their overhead, right?
MR. BAZ: Right.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Are we able.. .is Public Works able to add that, any portion of that
overhead cost to the costs of the engineering and all the other items that are included
in the project?
MR. BAZ: I assume so, but I’d have to verify that it’s actually being done. When, ‘cause
when the project gets approved by the federal government we have all the costs
included in there. So, I’ll work with the Director of Public Works to verify that.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I’ll just be interested to know if we’re able to increase our 20 percent
by adding the overhead allocation that comes from the other parts of the County, not
Public Works.
MR. BAZ: Iii verify that.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thanks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Ms. Crivello, questions or comments?
anything at this time for the Department? Mr. Victorino?

Mr. Carroll,

COUNCILMEM3ER VICTORINO: No, not at this time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we’re gonna receive information back on this item, so, Members, the
Chair is gonna defer this, with no objections?
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, this item is deferred.
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ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR HOKAMA:
I thank Mr. Baz and Mr. Walker for your participation this morning.
Members, the Chair is aware of quorum issues so we shall move directly, quickly to
BF-52(2).
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Mind calling for a short break?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: ‘Cause of quorum issues.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Short recess.
RECESS:

10:28 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:36 a.m.

ITEM 49:

.

.

,(gavet)...

PERFORMANCE AUDIT OF MAUI COUNTY’S GRANTS
(CC 11-290)

CHAIR HOKAMA:
(gavel)... Okay, we shall return to order. We are gonna go for another
maybe 10, 15 minutes, Members. So, for those of who that came for the performance
audit of Maui County grants, I’m gonna apologize to you for asking you to carve out
time for your day. We are gonna have a quorum issue shortly, but I want you to know
that we are gonna have a discussion on the consideration of BF-49, which is whether
or not we should contract for a performance audit of Maui County’s grants. And I am
gonna be working with people like Chair Crivello under her subject matter grants. I’ll
be working with Mr. Guzman regarding his area of grants particularly regarding
economic development components. And so for those of you that have prepared, we
will be bringing you.. .requesting your, you to be returning to the Committee to share
your comments with us. A part of this, of course, is to see how we are operating the
grants program under BF-49, and whether or not we can make improvements as well
as get the better efficiencies of using County dollars to provide services the County
does not directly provide, but through contract we provide safety net and other
services the community has continually request that the County consider.
So,
regarding BF-49, Members, unless you have a question at this time for the Chair, I’m
gonna ask for the deferral so that we can excuse our resource persons because they
have been very gracious and patient waiting for their opportunity. Any questions or
needs for BF-49? Mr. Baz, do you have any comments before we do action on it?
.

.

.
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MR. BAZ: No, they’re all here for the concessions too so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I know that’s why I wanted to be, tell them we appreciate it. And, again,
we did not anticipate some of the issues that some of our Members are currently
having, one with physical as well as travel issues. So, with no objections, we’re gonna
defer 49 and repost it for the next meeting, Members?
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so ordered.

ACTION:

ITEM 52(2):

DEFER no discussion.

USE OF COUNTY PROPERTY BY CONCESSION,
GRANT, LEASE, LICENSE, PERMIT, AND VENDOR
LICENSE

CHAIR HOKAMA: Let me direct you to BF-52(2), which is the Use of County property by
Concession, Grant, Lease, License, Permit, and Vendor License. According to our
rules, we have the ability to discuss this subject of the use of County property by
non-County entities and awarding of agreements to allow County use. I can tell you
as your Chair, there’s been a lot of community comment to me regarding why certain
things are the way they are. And why other entities do not have ability to put forward
a consideration to the County to see whether or not they can provide the County either
additional revenue or better care of County property. So, that’s why I’ve brought this
up as a subject. Part of it is also with the Department of Parks and Recreation. I
know that they are working on adjustments to the Maui County Code. I’m open to
trying to move this Department to an enterprise status whereby it will be a new area of
revenue generation and not just be an expense and see how we can then improve
services and programs within Parks and Recreation Department. With that, I’m gonna
first ask if Mr. Baz would like to share any comments regarding the current policy of
this use and if he has any additional comments for consideration.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I do not have any really opening comments. You know,
this discussion we were looking forward to getting information from the
Councilmembers and you, Mr. Chair, if there’s anything that we’d wanna dig into a
little bit deeper. We do have Office of Economic Development, Department of Housing
and Human Concerns, Department of Finance, and a representative from Department
of Parks and Recreation here as well should you have direct questions on
their... generally, Mr. Chair, I believe, I understood that the County of Maui
concession/lease/license schedule that was a part of the Budget Ordinance, which, I
think, that your Staff passed out as well is kinda the basis for this discussion. And
so, I did share that with the departments as well.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Yes, Members, you will have for this item the schedule.
You also have a copy of the Chapter 3.36, which is the County grants program in the
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Code as well as Chapter 3.40 on concession awards and rental or lease of County
property. And Chapter 5.12, which is the area of vendors in the Maui County Code.
Again, it is your Chair’s intention, one, you know, it won’t be done in this meeting
obviously. But I’m looking forward to modernizing and creating a more appropriate
policy of how the County will utilize its assets and what is fair for those that wanna
use those assets that are not part of what we define as the County government. So, at
this time, I’m gonna ask, I’d be interested in Ms. Rasmussen if you’d come and maybe
give us your perspective, please, as it regards on this subject in the area of your
jurisdiction. And then Ill ask again Parks and Housing and Human Concerns for
their comments since they also have agreements. And then later, we’ll ask Finance as
the gatekeeper for their comments. Ms. Rasmussen, welcome and thank you for being
here this morning.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Thank you. So, the leases that we have are.. .first, the Kula Agricultural
Park and all the tenants there. And, I think, there’s about 30. And then we have the
Old Maui High School. And we have lao Theatre. Let’s see what am I missing?
MR. BAZ: You don’t have an active lease with Old Maui High.
MS. RASMUSSEN: With what?
MR. BAZ: Old Maui High is not an active lease so.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Oh, okay, right, okay. So, my comments would be, let’s start with Lokahi
Pacific. I think that, you know, we’ve turned it over to a nonprofit, which is Lokahi
Pacific for that building. That building has been a challenge for them to lease it out
completely in the incubator status that they’ve tried. And also the restaurant. And
so, if you’re asking could they bear a rent increase I would say at this point not. And
they’ve tried many, many ways to make that building profitable. So, that’s something
that we’d have to explore further with them. Maui Community Theatre, I think, that
for this old historic building, they do an amazing job in taking care of it. We give them
a very small grant. I think, it’s around 60,000 per year. And, I think, considering all
the structural work that they’ve had to continue doing to keep that historic building
going, I think, that they’re doing an amazing job for a very small amount of grant
money that we’re giving them. And really a lot of the money, a lot of the revenue that
they gain from all of the events that have they do plow right back into taking care of
that building.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Have you...
MS. RASMUSSEN: The.. .yeah, I’m sorry? Go ahead,
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know I’m sorry to interrupt. I’m just trying to be sensitive to the time
because Mr. Victorino has informed the Chair in advance of his schedule. So, I would
say, is there any areas of improvement you would like us to review, Ms. Rasmussen?
Or have you found areas that you might wanna recommend some adjustments to
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make your area of jurisdiction a little bit more easier to deal with regarding this
subject?
MS. RASMUSSEN: I didn’t have a lot of time to think about this when I saw this item on the
agenda. So, I think, that that’s something that we’d like to consider. I think honestly
that the leases are being managed, you know, probably as close to what they can be.
And, I think, our part is to try to keep the entities as profitable as possible so that we
don’t have to turn around and put, plow more money, more County funds into them.
For instance, Old Maui High School will be coming with a proposal soon that will
alleviate the, us giving them an $80,000 grant to take care of the mowing and take
care of the roofs. You know, we’ll be putting that onto the new lessee, they’ll be taking
care of the entire property so the County can save $80,000 a year. So, it’s that kind of
thing that we would want to be looking at that the leases are very reasonable and
make sure that the economic development is taking place that we want on those
properties and that we’re not having to add money to it. That would be my goal.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Questions for Ms. Rasmussen, Members? Thank you
for that. I’m gonna ask Parks because Parks is doing some really good work right now
and I’d like to have the Parks person come forward. And I know it’s Ms. Teshima.
And, again, I’m just wondering what her Directors have shared with me. So, I wanna
commend the Department, one, for being open to looking at new ways of approaching
their expenses and trying to improve services because there is a lot of requests for use
on our County Parks facilities. So, one, you know, if you can give us some comments
on, from your Department’s perspective we would appreciate it that this morning.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, I’ll start off.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Mr. Ba.z.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, just for the information, we just transmitted to Council, actually through
my office ‘cause it related to budget as well, two items. One was the changes to the
Code as it relates to Parks, and the other is a change to the Appendix B, rates and fees
related to those parts. And, I know, the Deputy Director and the Director had worked
on this for a significant period of time to get it ready for transmittal. And we hope that
it is something that is reviewed because, I know, it’s the goal of the Department to
figure out how to as you mentioned generate more revenue rather than, I mean, parks
are a wonderful community benefit, but those that are, have the ability to generate
revenue we should be trying to generate revenue as well. So, I know, Ms. Teshima
could talk about the... she’s the one that handles the actual grants for leases of real
property, and which most of them are grants, not necessarily concessions at this
point. So, if she has any recommendations for changing the process maybe.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, you know, if there’s things that are hindering you or you think
should be considered, updated so that it improves your ability to do your tasks.
MS. TESHIMA: I know a couple years ago the GRC was abolished, the Grants Review
Committee. And they actually set guideline standards for each lease or license that
-
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the County executed. And it kinda seems like we need those parameters again. And
we’re trying hard to do that, but there’s different levels. A lot of our properties are
State-owned and it goes before the Board of Land and Natural Resources before it gets
to you folks for approval. So, it’s like we try to standardize the terms like the annual
rental fee, the number of years ‘cause that’s when a lot of people saying, you know,
this group had 50 years, how come we’re only getting 15 years? Then so, it’s like, you
know, it’s good to be, to have a standard term and fees, I think, established. And
that’s the only thing that I could really recommend at this point. But we’ve been
working with the other departments well and getting it through, but at times we do a
stumbling block with the State in getting those approvals. So, we have a lot of
agreements now held there and we’re looking forward to that being approved so we can
process it further.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so that’s hindering the State approval in your perspective?
MS. TESHIMA: Yes, a lot of our lands are obtained through Executive Order because the
State owns it. And so, that’s kinda like the first step of approval and then it comes to
you folks for approval. So, a lot of them are there at that, you know, waiting for
approvals.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
MS. TESHIMA: And then between our attorneys, you know, Corp. Counsel, the AG’s Office,
they also need to agree on the terms, the terms of the agreement, and so forth. So, a
lot of it takes time, you know, because if it was only County-owned then we wouldn’t
have those problems obviously. We would come directly to you, you know, like Paia
Youth Council and we wouldn’t have that extra step to take. But, yeah, we’re trying
our best.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, you folks are doing, I can say you folks doing some really good work in
your Department. I take seriously though your comment that consistency on some of
the terms because we’ve noticed that through the agreements some guys have $1 for
the agreements, some guys pay $1 1 for the agreement, amount of minimum insurance
covery [sic] at times fortunately it’s 1 million, 2 miffion. So, I appreciate that comment
about trying to get some consistency and smart standards so that it assists you folks
than hinder you folks in processing. I get that very clearly. Members, questions for
the Parks’ representative this morning? Having none, thank you so much for your
presence, Ms. Teshima. Mr. Victorino, I going to check with you ‘cause if you have a
few more moments, I’m gonna ask Human Concerns, but if you have to leave I’m
gonna cut it at this point in time.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I really do have to leave, Chair. I’m sorry.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, no, no, again, you gave the Chair advance notification. So, again, I
understand. My apologies to Human Concerns and Finance for not giving you your
opportunity at this meeting to give your comments, but we will have this discussion
again. The Chair considers this something very important to update and make
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current on how we approach the use of County properties.
objections, we’ll defer this item?

So, Members, with no

COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, this item is deferred.
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR HOKAMA: And there being no further business for this Committee this morning,
thank you for your presence. We are adjourned.
.(gavet).

ADJOURN: 10:53 a.m.

APPROVED:

RIKI HOKAMA, Chair
Budget and finance Committee
bf:min:150917:df

Transcribed by: Delfey Fernandez
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